
 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

October 21, 2024 at 5:03 PM  
Regular Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

AGENDA 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

B.    INVOCATION 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D.    PRESENTATION OF ACHIEVEMENTS AND SERVICE AWARDS 

A. Kerri Hubier - 20 Years 

E.    ANNOUNCEMENTS 

F.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

G.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

1. Mr. Thomas Jones - City of Mansfield Mayor 

H.    PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

I.     COUNSEL'S REPORT 

J.     ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

2. Michael Norton, Parish Administrator, written report 

K.     LOBBYIST'S REPORT 

3. Chance McNeely, The Delta Resource Group, written report 

L.    TREASURER'S FINANCIAL REPORT 

4. Accept the Financial Statements as of September 30, 2024 and Year to date 

Budget to actual report 

M.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

5. Approval of Minutes: Sept. 16, 2024 Regular Meeting; Oct. 1, 2024 Special 

Meeting; Oct. 7, 2024 Administration, Airport and Animal, Budget and Finance, 
Personnel, Policy and Procedures, Road, Buildings and Properties Committee 

Meetings and Special Meeting; Oct. 15, 2024 Budget and Finance Committee 
Meeting 

Page 1



Agenda DeSoto Parish Police Jury October 21, 2024 

 

N.    OLD BUSINESS 

O.    NEW BUSINESS 

P.    RESOLUTIONS 

6. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution granting approval of assignment of 
that certain oil, gas and other liquids or gaseous mineral lease between DeSoto 

Parish Police Jury, Lessor and Mineral Services, Inc. Lessee 

7. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution granting approval of assignment of 

that certain oil, gas and other liquid or gaseous mineral lease between 
Chesapeake Louisiana, LP and Chesapeake Plains, LLC, Lessor and Marlin 
Exploration, LLC, Lessee 

8. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution for the 5 Year Capital Improvement 
Plan at the C. E. Rusty Williams Airport (2025-2029) 

9. Adopt a Resolution authorizing $2 million of  royalties to be earmarked for 

Economic Development Projects and  authorize the Parish Treasurer to invest all 
royalties in short term  investments 

10. Adopt a Resolution and authorize the President to sign the updated Cooperative 
Endeavor Agreement with the Sheriff for construction of the Sheriff's office and 

Detention Facility 

Q.    ORDINANCES 

11. Adopt Ordinance 1 of 2024 to abandon Azalea Road off Hwy 171 

R.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

12. Authorize participation by staff and Jurors in the Northwest Louisiana Veterans 

Day Week/Parade at the Louisiana State Fairgrounds 

13. Accept the resignation of Stacey Alexander Henderson, MD for the 
Ambulance/EMS District Board and appoint Mark Cornella 

14. Approve an increase in the contract with The Delta Resource Group based upon 
Consumer Price Index for next year 

15. Authorize the President to sign the Right of Way Agreement with BMP Mundy, 

LLC 

16. Authorize the Parish Administrator to draft a letter of support to  Louisiana 

Department of Agriculture and Forestry Equine Promotion Board  related to 
seeking grant funding for a covered arena complimenting the  DeSoto Parish 4-

H Organization 

S.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

Page 2



Agenda DeSoto Parish Police Jury October 21, 2024 

 

17. Authorize the Treasurer to transfer $1 million from the Jail Fund and $5.6 
million from Tipping Fees into the Correctional Facility Fund for the construction 

of the new jail 

T.   PERSONNEL ITEMS 

18. Approve hiring four (4) Compactor Site Operator Floater Positions 

19. Approve and authorize new job title replacing the general clerk position in the 
maintenance department to be funded in the 2025 Budget 

U.    POLICY AND PROCEDURES ITEMS 

20. Amend the Bylaws: Article III Rule 2 "The Secretary will email out packets for 
the Committee Meetings no later than Wednesday preceding the Committee 

Meeting and no later than Thursday preceding the Regular Meeting 

V.    ROAD ITEMS 

21. Authorize the E911 naming of Dillard Pvt Dr. off of Stiles Road in Frierson 

22. Authorize the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with the City 
of Mansfield to pave Adams Street 

23. Amend the Road Budget in the amount of $50,000 for tree cutting service 

W.  ADJOURN 

Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

October 07, 2024 at 5:00 PM  
Administrative Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 1A, Chairman Jimmy Holmes 
District 1B Bubba Clark 
District 2 Robert Latham 

District 3 Greg Baker 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 5 Nick Rains 
District 6 Rodriguez Ross 

 
ABSENT 
District 1C Keith Parker 

District 4A Richard Fuller arrived late 
District 4B Jeri Burrell 

District 4C Ernel Jones arrived late 
 

B.   INVOCATION 

Given by Ross 
 

C.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Led by Ross 
 

D.   PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

None 

E.    LEGAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 

None 

F.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

Page 28



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury October 07, 2024 

 

Authorize the Parish Administrator to draft a letter of support to  Louisiana Department of 
Agriculture and Forestry Equine Promotion Board  related to seeking grant funding for a 

covered arena complimenting the  DeSoto Parish 4-H Organization 

Motion made by District 1A, Chairman Holmes, Seconded by District 6 Ross. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, District 3 

Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

G.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

H.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

1. Authorize a Public Hearing to receive Guests and Public Comments regarding 
the intent to abandon Azalea Road off HWY 171 on Monday October 21, 2024 at 

5:02 PM 

Alternate motion to authorize a Public Hearing to receive Guests and Public 
comments regarding the intent to abandon any interest or rights that the 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury may have in a portion of Azalea Lane off HWY 171 
consistent with the attached survey on Monday October 21, 2024 at 5:02pm. 

 

Motion made by District 1A, Chairman Holmes, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-
Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, 
District 3 Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

2. Authorize participation by staff and Jurors in the Northwest Louisiana Veterans 
Day Week/Parade at the Louisiana State Fairgrounds 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, 

District 3 Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

3. Accept the resignation of Stacey Alexander Henderson, MD for the 

Ambulance/EMS District Board and appoint new member. 

Motion to accept resignation and appoint Mark Cornella to the board 

Motion made by District 1A, Chairman Holmes, Seconded by District 2 Latham. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, 

District 3 Baker, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, 
District 6 Ross 
 

Page 29



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury October 07, 2024 

 

4. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution granting approval of assignment of 
that certain oil, gas and other liquid or gaseous mineral lease between DeSoto 

Parish Police Jury, Lessor and Mineral Services, Inc, Lessee 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, 
District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

5. Approve an increase in the contract with The Delta Resource Group based upon 
Consumer Price Index for next year 

Motion made by District 1A, Chairman Holmes, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, 
District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

6. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution granting approval of assignment of 
that certain oil, gas and other liquid or gaseous mineral lease between DeSoto 

Parish Police Jury, Lessor and Marlin Exploration, LLC, Lessee 

Alternate to authorize the President to sign a Resolution granting approval of 
assignment of that certain oil, gas and other liquid or gaseous mineral lease 

between Chesapeake Louisiana, LP and Chesapeake Plains, LLC, Lessor to 
Marlin Exploration, LLC. Lessee 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, 

District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

7. Authorize the President to sign the Right of Way Agreement with BMP Mundy, 

LLC 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, 

District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

8. Authorize the Parish Administrator to draft a letter of support to Louisiana 

Department of Agriculture and Forestry Equine Promotion Board related to 
seeking grant funding for a covered arena complimenting the DeSoto Parish 4-H 

Organization 

Motion made by District 5 Rains, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, 

Page 30



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury October 07, 2024 

 

District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

I.     ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
 

Page 31



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

October 07, 2024 at 5:05 PM  
Airport and Animal Control Committee  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Trina Boyd-Simpson, Chairwoman, Robby Latham, Nick Rains, Keith Parker and Richard 
Fuller 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 4D, Chairwoman Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

District 2 Robert Latham 
District 5 Nick Rains 
 

ABSENT 
District 1C Keith Parker 

 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    AIRPORT AND ANIMAL CONTROL ITEMS 

1. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution for the 5 Year Capital Improvement 
Plan at the C. E. Rusty Williams Airport (2025-2029) 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 
Voting Yea: District 4D, Chairwoman Boyd-Simpson, District 4A Fuller, District 2 

Latham, District 5 Rains 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 5 Rains, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
 

Page 32



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

October 01, 2024 at 5:00 PM  
Special Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 1B Bubba Clark 

District 1C Keith Parker 
District 3 Greg Baker 

District 4B Jeri Burrell 
District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 6 Rodriguez Ross 
 

ABSENT 
District 2 Robert Latham 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

District 5 Nick Rains 
 

B.    INVOCATION 

Given by Ross 
 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Led by Ross 

 

D.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

E.    ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

F.    NEW BUSINESS 

1. A. Executive session in compliance with La RS 42:6.1 and La R.S. 42:17(A)(1) 

which permits executive sessions for the discussion of the character, 
professional competence, or physical or mental health of a person 

Page 33



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury October 01, 2024 

 

B. Executive Session in compliance with La. R.S. 42:16 and La. R.S. 42:17(2) 
which permits strategy sessions or negotiations with respect to collective 

bargaining, prospective litigation after formal written demand, or litigation when 
an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the bargaining or litigating 
position of the public body. 

C. Motion to enter into Executive Session for the two matters as follows. 

NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The DeSoto Parish Police Jury is providing notice pursuant to Louisiana Revised 

Statutes 42:16 and 42:17(A) (1) and A(2) that will be convening for an executive 
session as authorized by Louisiana Revises Statures 42:16 and 42:17 (A)(1) and 

(A)(2) and that it intends to enter into the session for the purposes of discussing 
the following: (1) address an appeal of termination where the election has been 

made by the former employee to have the matter in executive session and the 
discussion of character and professional competence relative to the same; and 
(2) conduct a strategy session on a formal written demand made upon the DeSoto 

Parish Police Jury concerning prospective litigation. 

The discussions in this executive session will be limited to matters exempt from 

the open meeting requirements set forth in Louisiana Law. No final or binding 
action will be taken during this executive session 

 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 3 

Baker, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
6 Ross 
 

2. Motion to reconvene from Executive Session and Vote 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 3 
Baker, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
6 Ross 

Motion made to reinstate the employee starting October 2, 2024 with no back 
pay. 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 3 

Baker, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
6 Ross 
 

G.    ADJOURN 

Page 34



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

October 07, 2024 at 5:08 PM  
Policy and Procedures Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Bubba Clark, Chairman, Jimmy Holmes, Greg Baker, Ernel Jones and Jeri Burrell 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 1B, Chairman Bubba Clark 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 3 Greg Baker 

District 4C Ernel Jones 
 
ABSENT 

District 4B Jeri Burrell 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    POLICY AND PROCEDURES ITEMS 

1. Amend the Bylaws: Article III Rule 2 "The Secretary will email out packets for 

the Committee Meetings no later than Wednesday preceding the Committee 
Meeting and no later than Thursday preceding the Regular Meeting. 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 3 Baker. 
Voting Yea: District 1B, Chairman Clark, District 1A Holmes, District 3 Baker, 

District 4C Jones 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 3 Baker. 
 

Page 35



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

October 07, 2024 at 5:06 PM  
Budget and Finance Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Greg Baker, Chairman, Ernel Jones, Richard Fuller, Trina Boyd-Simpson and Robby 
Latham 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 3, Chairman Greg Baker 

District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 2 Robert Latham 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

1. Adopt a Resolution authorizing up to $2 Million of Royalties to be earmarked for 
Economic Development Projects and excess royalties to be transferred to LAMP 

for short term investments 

Alternate motion made to adopt a Resolution authorizing $2 million of royalties 
to be earmarked for Economic Development Projects and authorize the Parish 

Treasurer to invest all royalties in short term investments 
 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 4A 
Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 2 Latham 

 

2. Authorize the Treasurer to transfer $1 Million from the Jail fund  and $5.6 

Million from Tipping Fees into the Correctional Facility Fund for the construction 
of the new Jail 

Page 36



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury October 07, 2024 

 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4C Jones 

Voting Abstaining: District 4A Fuller 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
 

Page 37



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

October 07, 2024 at 5:15 PM  
Special Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Rodriguez Ross, President • Greg Baker, Vice President 
Michael Norton, Administrator • Jodi Zeigler, Secretary • Lilliana Garcia, Treasurer 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 

District 1B Bubba Clark 
District 2 Robert Latham 

District 3 Greg Baker 
District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 5 Nick Rains 

District 6 Rodriguez Ross 
 
ABSENT 

District 1C Keith Parker 
District 4B Jeri Burrell 

 

B.    INVOCATION 

Done in previous meeting 

 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Done in previous meeting 

 

D.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

E.    ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

F.    PROCLAMATIONS 

Page 38



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury October 07, 2024 

 

1. Authorize the President to sign a Proclamation declaring October as 
Dysautonomia Awareness Month 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 3 Baker, District 4A 
Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 

Ross 
Voting Nay: District 2 Latham 

 

G.    NEW BUSINESS 

2. Amend the Road Budget Contract Laborer Line Item in the amount of  $600,000 

to complete the 2024 Roads listed on the three (3) year asphalt  overlay 
program.  

Motion made by District 1B Clark, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, District 3 
Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 

Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

3. Amend the Capital Road Budget in the amount of $100,000 to purchase a Tack 

Trailer and skid steer attachments 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, District 3 
Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 

Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

4. Executive Session in compliance with La. R.S. 42:6.1 and La R.S. 42:17(2) 

which permits strategy sessions or negotiations with respect to collective 
bargaining, prospective litigation after formal written demand, or litigation when 

an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the bargaining or litigating 
position of the public body. 

Motion to enter into Executive Session 

NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The DeSoto Parish Police Jury is providing notice pursuant to Louisiana Revised 

Statutes42:16 and 42:17(2) that it intends to enter into the session for the 
purposes of discussing the following: 

Conduct a strategy session on a formal written demand made upon the DeSoto 

Parish Police Jury concerning prospective litigation. The discussions in this 
executive session will be limited to matters exempt from the open meeting 

requirements set forth in Louisiana Law. No final or binding action will be taken 
during this executive session 

Page 39



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury October 07, 2024 

 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, District 3 

Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 
Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

5. Motion to reconvene from Executive Session and vote 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, District 3 
Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 
Rains, District 6 Ross 

Motion to accept the Council's recommendations on the terms on the 
Settlement Agreement and authorize the President to sign the release 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, District 3 
Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 

Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

H.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
 

Page 40



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

October 15, 2024 at 5:00 PM  
Budget and Finance Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 3, Chairman Greg Baker 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

 
ABSENT 
District 2 Robert Latham 

 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

1. Airport 

Animal 

Office of Community Services 

Rental Assistance 

Sales Tax Budget  

Motion to approve the Airport Fund Budget as presented  

 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 4A 

Fuller, District 4C Jones 

Motion to approve the Animal Fund Budget as presented 

Page 41



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury October 15, 2024 

 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 4A 

Fuller, District 4C Jones 

Motion to approve the Office of Community Services Fund Budget as 
presented 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 4A 

Fuller, District 4C Jones 

Motion to approve the Rental Assistance Fund Budget as presented 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 4A 
Fuller, District 4C Jones 

Motion to approve the Sales Tax Budget as presented 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 4A 

Fuller, District 4C Jones 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
 

Page 42



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

October 07, 2024 at 5:11 PM  
Road Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Ernel Jones, Chairman, Jimmy Holmes, Nick Rains, Keith Parker and Richard Fuller 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 4C, Chairman Ernel Jones 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 5 Nick Rains 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
 
ABSENT 

District 1C Keith Parker 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    ROAD ITEMS 

1. Authorize the E911 naming of Dillard Pvt Dr off of Stiles Road in Frierson 

Motion made by District 5 Rains, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 
Voting Yea: District 4C, Chairman Jones, District 1A Holmes, District 5 Rains, 

District 4A Fuller 
 

2. Amend the Road Budget Contract Laborer Line Item in the amount of $600,000 

to complete the 2024 Roads listed on the three (3) year asphalt overlay 
program.  

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 
Voting Yea: District 4C, Chairman Jones, District 1A Holmes, District 5 Rains, 

District 4A Fuller 
 

Page 43



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury October 07, 2024 

 

3. Amend the Capital Road Budget in the amount of $100,000 to purchase a Tack 
Trailer and skid steer attachments 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 

Voting Yea: District 4C, Chairman Jones, District 1A Holmes, District 5 Rains, 
District 4A Fuller 

 

4. Authorize the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with the City 

of Mansfield to pave Adams Street. 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4C, Chairman Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 4C, Chairman Jones, District 1A Holmes, District 4A Fuller 

Voting Abstaining: District 5 Rains 
 

5. Amend the Road Budget in the amount of $150,000 for tree cutting services  

Motion to amend the Road Budget in the amount of $50,000 for tree cutting 
services 

 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 

Voting Yea: District 4C, Chairman Jones, District 1A Holmes, District 5 Rains, 
District 4A Fuller 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 5 Rains, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

 

Page 44



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

October 07, 2024 at 5:07 PM 
 Personnel Committee Meeting 
 

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, 

Mansfield, LA 71052  101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052 

 

MINUTES 

Jeri Burrell, Chairwoman, Trina Boyd-Simpson, Bubba Clark, Jimmy Holmes and Keith 

Parker 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 1B Bubba Clark 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
 

ABSENT 
District 4B, Chairwoman Jeri Burrell 

District 1C Keith Parker 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    PERSONNEL ITEMS 

1. Approve hiring four (4) Compactor Site Operator Floater Positions and amend 

the Solid Waste Budget in the amount of $12,000 

Alternate motion to approve hiring four (4) Compactor Site Operator Floater 

Positions. 
 

Motion made by District 1B Clark, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 

Voting Yea: District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 1B Clark, District 1A Holmes 
 

2. Approve and authorize new job title replacing the general clerk position in the 
maintenance department to be funded in the 2025 Budget 

Page 45



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury October 07, 2024 

 

Motion made by District 1B Clark, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 
Voting Yea: District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 1B Clark, District 1A Holmes 

 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 

 

Page 46



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

September 16, 2024 at 5:05 PM  
Regular Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 1B Bubba Clark 
District 1C Keith Parker 

District 2 Robert Latham 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 5 Nick Rains 

District 6 Rodriguez Ross 
 

ABSENT 
District 3 Greg Baker 
District 4B Jeri Burrell 

 

B.    INVOCATION 

Done in previous meeting 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Done in previous meeting 

D.    ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None 

E.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

None 

F.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

1. Lisa Lobrano Burson, DeSoto Parish Clerk of Court, rendering her mandatory 
statement, pursuant to LSA-R.S. 13:781 

Amanda Raynes, Registrar of Voters, new laws for voting 

G.    PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

Page 47



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury September 16, 2024 

 

None 

H.     COUNSEL'S REPORT 

None 

I.     ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

2. Michael Norton, Parish Administrator, written report 

 

J.     LOBBYISTS'S REPORT 

3. Chance McNeely, The Delta Resource Group, written report 

 

K.    TREASURER'S FINANCIAL REPORT 

4. Accept the Financial Statements as of August 31, 2024 and Year to date Budget 
to actual report 

Ms. Garcia, Parish Treasurer, presented the year to date financials and reported 

no deficits.  
 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

L.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

5. Approve August 19, 2024 Public Hearing, Regular Meeting and Special Meeting. 

September 3, 2024 Administrative, Budget and Finance, Buildings and 
Properties and Road Committee Meetings. 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 

5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

M.    OLD BUSINESS 

N.    NEW BUSINESS 

O.    RESOLUTIONS 

P.    ORDINANCES 

Page 48



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury September 16, 2024 

 

Q.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

6. Authorize the President to execute a Resolution for Cypress Energy Corporation 

requesting the DeSoto Parish Police Jury place for sealed bid with Louisiana 
Department of Natural Resources 

Motion made by District 2 Latham, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 

5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

7. Authorize reinstating IBTS 3rd party provider service in the unincorporated 

areas of the Parish 

Motion made by District 1B Clark, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

8. Authorize the Administrator to execute the Cleco Power LLC Servitude 

Agreement 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

9. Authorize the President to execute a Resolution delegating to the Clerk of Court 
to recommend election day polling locations to the DPPJ 

Motion made by District 2 Latham, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 
Ross 
Voting Abstaining: District 4A Fuller 

 

R.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

10. Amend the General Fund Budget up to $90,000 (additional funding) for repairs 
and additions to the splash pad at the Alumni Park 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 

Voting Yea: District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, District 4A Fuller, District 4C 
Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 6 Ross 

Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker 
Voting Abstaining: District 5 Rains 

 

Page 49



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury September 16, 2024 

 

11. Amend the General Fund Budget in the amount of $60,000 for election 
expenses 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 

5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

S.    BUILDINGS AND PROPERTIES & PARKS AND RECREATIONAL ITEMS 

12. Authorize DeSoto Athletics cutting a baseball diamond at the Alumni Park and 
DPPJ purchasing the equipment 

Motion made by District 2 Latham, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

T.    ROAD ITEMS 

13. Allow speed bumps in neighborhoods only and rumble strips on major thorough 

roads 

Motion made by District 5 Rains, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

14. Authorize the E911 naming of Star City Pvt Ln south of Boyd Road in Grand 
Cane 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

U.  ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

 

Page 50



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

October 07, 2024 at 5:11 PM  
Buildings and Properties & Parks and Recreational 

Committee 
 

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Nick Rains, Chairman, Keith Parker, Richard Fuller, Ernel Jones and Robby Latham 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 5, Chairman Nick Rains 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

District 2 Robert Latham 
 
ABSENT 

District 1C Keith Parker 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 
 

D.    BUILDINGS AND PROPERTIES ITEMS 

1. Adopt a resolution and authorize the president to sign the updated Cooperative 
Endeavor Agreement with the Sheriff for construction of the Sheriff's office and 

Detention Facility 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 2 Latham. 

Voting Yea: District 5, Chairman Rains, District 4C Jones, District 2 Latham 
Voting Abstaining: District 4A Fuller 
 

E.    PARKS AND RECREATIONAL ITEMS 

F.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

 

Page 51



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 

 

WHEREAS, the DeSoto Parish Police Jury was named as Lessor in that ‘Lease For Oil, Gas And Other 
Liquid Or Gaseous Hydrocarbon Minerals’, and Mineral Services, Inc. as Lessee, said lease identified as 
State Agency Lease No. 22104, effective September 14, 2022, recorded in DeSoto Parish October 26, 
2022 as file number 785585 covering property described therein as follows:  
 
ENTIRE TRACT 45586 - De Soto Parish, Louisiana 
A certain Tract of land, excluding the beds and bottoms of all navigable waters, belonging to and not 
presently under mineral lease from Desoto Parish Police Jury on September 14, 2022, being more fully 
described as follows: The Southeast Quarter (SE/4) of Section 26, Township 13 North, Range 14 West, 
DeSoto Parish, Louisiana, containing approximately 162.263 acres, all as more particularly outlined on a 
plat on file in the Office of Mineral Resources, Department of Natural Resources. The description is 
based on information provided by the State Agency regarding location and ownership of surface and 
mineral rights. All bearings, distances and coordinates, if applicable, are based on Louisiana Coordinate 
System of 1927, (North or South Zone). 
 
AND WHEREAS, Article 4 of the above State Agency Lease No. 22104 states in part as follows: 
 
ARTICLE 4 - TRANSFERS AND ASSIGNMENTS 
(A) No assignment, sublease or other transfer, in whole or in part, of any rights or interest granted to 
Lessee under this Lease (collectively hereinafter referred to as an "Assignment") shall be valid unless 
approved by Lessor. 
 
AND WHEREAS, Mineral Services, Inc., Lessee, did assign all of their rights, title and interest in State 
Agency Lease No. 22104 unto Paloma Natural Gas, LLC, in that Assignment Of Oil, Gas And Mineral Lease 
recorded in DeSoto Parish November 17, 2022 as file number 786129;  
 
AND WHEREAS, the DeSoto Parish Police Jury approved said Assignment in that Resolution dated June 
20, 2023, recorded in the DeSoto Parish Clerk of Court records under File #791914; 
  
AND WHEREAS, Paloma Natural Gas, LLC did assign all of their rights, title and interest in State Agency 
Lease No. 22104 unto BPX Operating Company in that Conveyance, Assignment And Bill Of Sale 
recorded in DeSoto Parish September 10, 2024 as file number 2982538; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury in legal session convened, that it 
does hereby authorize and approve, inasmuch as it is authorized to do so, the assignment of the above 
State Agency Lease No. 22104 from Paloma Natural Gas, LLC all of their rights, title and interest in said 
Lease unto BPX Operating Company.    

 
 
MOTION TO ADOPT the above Resolution was made by Robbie Latham seconded by Richard Fuller.  

WHEREUPON the Resolution was declared duly adopted on this the 21st day of October  2024.  

 

AYES:         NAYS:        ABSENT:      Abstain:  __      

 
              
RODRIGUEZ ROSS, PRESIDENT                                   JODI ZEIGLER, PARISH SECRETARY 
 

Page 52



 
DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY                                    DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

 
CERTIFIED 

 
I, Jodi Zeigler, hereby certify in my capacity as the Parish Secretary of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury that 
the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution passed by the DeSoto Parish Police 
Jury at a Regular Meeting held on the 21st  day of   October, 2024__ a quorum being present. 
 
 
                                                                                     

Jodi Zeigler, Parish Secretary 

Page 53



 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the DeSoto Parish Police Jury was named as Lessor in that “ Lease For Oil, Gas And Other 

Liquid Or Gaseous Hydrocarbon Minerals, and Classic Petroleum as Lessee, said Lease identified as State 

Agency Lease 20636, effective June 8, 2011, Recorded in Book 1169, at Page 171, under entry number 

698755, of the Records of DeSoto Parish, covering property described therein as follows:  

 

   ENTIRE TRACT 42114 - De Soto Parish, Louisiana 

A certain Tract of land, excluding the beds and bottoms of all navigable waters, belonging to and not presently 

under mineral lease from Desoto Parish Police Jury on June 8, 2011, being more fully described as follows: 

Tract 1: 0.6 acres, more or less, being Lots 1, 2, 5 and 6 Block 1, Town of Mansfield, more particularly described 

in that certain Deed dated December 19, 2007, by and between Anne Hewitt Belville and the Succession of 

Dorothy Virginia Roach as Granter and DeSoto Parish Police Jury, as Grantee, recorded in Book 744, Page 851, 

Registry #562805 of the Conveyance of Records of DeSoto Parish, Louisiana Tract 2: 0.2455 acres, more or less, 

being Lot 4 of Block 1 and a portion of Lot 3 of Block 1 fronting 42 feet on Franklin Street and 99 feet on 

Adams  Street, Town of Mansfield, more particularly described by metes and bounds in that certain Deed dated 

August 10,1916, by and between C.E.Jenkins, husband of Mary Lou Johnson, as Grantor and Desoto Parish Police 

Jury, as Grantee, recorded in Book 41, Page 82, Registry # 12220 of the Conveyance of Records of DeSoto Parish, 

Louisiana Tract 3: 0.9 acres, more or less, Block 33 of the Town of Mansfield, being more particularly described 

in that certain Resolution dated May 9, 1962, by and between the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, as Grantor and 

the Public, as Grantee, recorded in Book 254, Page 8, Registry #292538 of the Conveyance Records of Desoto 

Parish, Louisiana. Tract 4: 0.2941 acres, more or less, the South 27 feet of Lots I and 6; the North 42.4 feet of Lot 

2 and the North Half of Lot 5; all in Block 2 of the Town  of Mansfield, being more particularly described in 

that certain Corrected Act of Conveyance and Quitclaim dated March 5, 1992, by and between Robert E. 

Plummer, husband of Lynda Black Plummer, as Grantor and the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, as Grantee, recorded 

in Book 675, Page 72, Registry #525914 of the Conveyance Records of DeSoto Parish, Louisiana Tract 5: 0.9 

acres, more or less, being all of Block 6, Town of Mansfield, more particularly described in that certain Deed 

dated December 28, 1984, by and between Ben Johnson, III, Testamentary Executor of the Succession of W.A. 

Nabors, as Grantor and the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, as Grantee, recorded in Book 568, Page 619, Registry 

#472563 of the Conveyance Records of DeSoto Parish, Louisiana Tract 6:1.438 acres, more or less, being the West 

half of Block 51, Town of Mansfield, more particularly described in that certain Deed dated December 28, 1984, 

by and between Ben Johnson, III, Testamentary Executor of the Succession of W.A. Nabors, as Grantor and the 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury, as Grantee, recorded in Book 568, Page 619, Registry #472563 of the Conveyance 

Records of DeSoto Parish, Louisiana. Tract 7: 0.371 acres, more or less, beginning at a point on the East 

property line of Crosby Street of the Town of Mansfield, DeSoto Parish, Louisiana, 319.81 feet South of the 

centerline of Polk Street, and running thence East 208.5 feet, thence North 77.65 feet, thence West 208.5 feet, 

thence South 77.65 feet to the place of beginning, being more particularly described in that certain Deed dated 

November 10, 1983, by and between J.W. Porter and Linda Shaw Porter, husband and wife and Richard G. 

Neeson and Sandra Scott Neeson, husband and wife, as Grantor and the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, as Grantee, 

recorded in Book 542, Page 603, Registry # 461395  of the Conveyance Records of DeSoto Parish, Louisiana. 

Tract 8: 0.62 acres, more or less, beginning at a point on the East property line of Crosby Street 319.81 feet 

South of the center line of Polk Street a one half inch iron, and running thence South along said East property 

line 130.85 feet, a one half inch iron, in private alley, thence East in said private alley 208.5 feet, a one half inch 

iron in said alley; thence North 130.85 feet a one half inch pin, thence West 208.5 feet to the place of beginning, 

Page 54



being more particularly described in that certain Deed dated June 6, 1983, by and between James R. Gallaspy and 

Betty R. Gallaspy, husband and wife, as Grantor and the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, as Grantee, recorded in Book 

533, Page 468, Registry # 455970 of the Conveyance Records of DeSoto Parish, Louisiana. Tract 9: 0.17 acres, 

more or less, beginning at the Southwest Comer of Block 4 of the City of Mansfield, as per plat thereof recorded 

in Conveyance Records of DeSoto Parish, Louisiana, at the comer of Polk and Adams Streets, thence run North 

along Adams Street 82.5 feet, thence run East 86 feet, thence run North 49.5 feet, thence run East 2 feet, thence 

South 132 feet to Polk Street, thence West 88 feet to place of beginning, being more particularly described in 

that certain Deed dated March 6, 1990, by and between Oliver H.P. Sample, widower of Sarah Mercer Sample, 

and Virginia Sample Yates, as Grantor and the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, as Grantee, recorded in Book 589, Page 

262, Registry # 514738 of the Conveyance Records of DeSoto Parish, Louisiana Tract 10: 0.632 acres, more or 

less, beginning at a point of 208.5 feet East and 267.5 feet South of the intersection of the East property line of 

Crosby Street with the South property line of Polk Street in the City of Mansfield, DeSoto Parish, Louisiana, for 

a place of beginning, thence run East 156 feet, thence run South 133.5 feet, thence run West 13 feet, thence 

run South 50.5 feet, thence run East 67 feet, thence run South 25 feet to the North line of North Street, thence 

run West 92 feet, thence run North 49 feet, thence run West 118 feet, thence run North 160 feet to the place of 

beginning, being more particularly described in that certain Deed dated December 8, 1983, by and between 

Marjorie Stephenson Calvert, legally divorced from Walter Calvert and Alice Stephenson Ruffin, wife of Albert 

S. Ruffin, as Grantor and the DeSoto Parish Pol ice Jury, as Grantee, recorded in Book 542, Page l 6 l, Registry# 

46 1107 of the Conveyance Records of DeSoto Parish, Louisiana Total Acreage for nomination in Section 9, 

Township 12 North, Range 13 West contains 6.171 acres, all as more particularly outlined on a plat on file in the 

Office of Mineral Resources, Department of Natural Resources. The description is based on information provided 

by the State Agency regarding location and ownership of surface and mineral rights. All bearings, distances and 

coordinates, if applicable, are based on Louisiana Coordinate System of 1927, (North or South Zone). 

 

AND WHEREAS,   Classic Petroleum INC. Assigned All Rights as to Said Lease to Chesapeake  Louisiana 

LP,  on August 2, 2011, effective as to the Date of Said Lease,  recorded in Book 1177, Page 847, under 

Entry Number 700944, of the Records of Desoto Parish.  

AND WHEREAS , Chesapeake Louisiana LP and Chesapeake Plains, LLC, as current owners of said Lease  

wish to assign the specific  rights listed below, as well as other acreage that is  not part of the STATE 

Agency Lease 20636,  in a Term Assignment, as to Said Lease, to Marlin Exploration, LLC, a Louisiana 

Limited Liability Company.  

The entirety of the leasehold acreage, being tract 42114, as described therein and above, being 

10 parcels, consisting of a total of  6.171 acres, all located in Section 9, Township 12 North, 

Range 13 West, Desoto Parish, limited to the depths from the surface to the Base of the 

Hosston Formation, LESS AND EXCEPT  any existing producing wellbores as of the effective date 

of the Term  Assignment, and all production and personal property associated with said 

wellbores. For purposes of this Term Assignment, the Hosston Formation is defined as the 

stratigraphic equivalent of the formation identified between a depth of 6,628 TVD down to 

9,472 TVD as shown on that certain electrical log for the Chesapeake Operating, Inc. AT&N 

Martinez 30-13-13 No. 1 Well, ( API No. 17-031-24642;Serial Number 239297) located in 

Section 30, Township 13 North, Range 13 West, DeSoto Parish, Louisiana.  

AND WHEREAS Article   8 of State Agency Lease Number  20636 requires the Consent of the 
Desoto  Parish Police Jury to complete this assignment.  
 

8. It is further agreed and understood that the rights of Lessee may be assigned or transferred in whole or 

in part, but no transfer or assignment whether in whole or in part, in relation to this lease shall be valid unless 

Page 55



such transfer or assignment be approved by the Lessor. 

 

NOW THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury in legal session convened, that it 

does hereby authorize and approve, inasmuch as it is authorized to do so, the Term Assignment of the 

above State Agency Lease No. 20636, as described hereinabove, from Chesapeake Louisiana LP and 

Chesapeake Plains, LLC, to Marlin Exploration, LLC.  

 

MOTION TO ADOPT the above Resolution was made by  _________________, seconded by 

_________________.  

WHEREUPON the Resolution was declared duly adopted on this the _____ day of __________, 2024.  

 

AYES ______                NAYS _______         ABSENT ______       Abstain _______ 

 

    ________________________                                                     ______________________________ 
   RODRIGUEZ ROSS, PRESIDENT                                                      JODI ZEIGLER, PARISH SECRETARY 
    DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY                                                       DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  
 

  I, Jodi Zeigler, hereby certify in my capacity  as the Parish Secretary of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury 

that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution passed by the DeSoto Parish 

Police Jury at a Regular Meeting held on the _____ day of _____________, a quorum being present.  

 

                                                                                                                  _______________________ 

                                                                                                                   Jodi Zeigler, Parish Secretary  

 

 

Page 56



 5 Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

CIP START YEAR: 2025

$111,636 2022 NPE (Expires FY25) $110,000 2022 AIG (Expires FY25)
$150,000 2023 NPE (Expires FY26) $145,000 2023 AIG (Expires FY26)
$150,000 2024 NPE (Expires FY27) $144,000 2024 AIG (Expires FY27)
$150,000 Estimated NPE (for planning through 2029) $144,000 2025 AIG (for planning through 2026)

NPE AIG NPE AIG Additional AIP Other Match

BIL $135,000 $121,500 $13,500
AIP $125,000 $112,500 $12,500

State $550,000 $550,000
State $100,000 $100,000

$449,136 $421,500 Remaining Funds 2025 Annual Subtotals: $910,000 $112,500 $121,500 $650,000 $26,000
AIP/BIL AIP portion: $665,000 $598,500 $66,500
AIP/BIL BIL portion: $628,334 $565,500 $62,833
State $450,000 $450,000
Local $450,000 $450,000

$636 Remaining Funds 2026 Annual Subtotals: $2,193,334 $598,500 $565,500 $900,000 $129,333
AIP $60,000 $54,000 $6,000

$96,636 Remaining Funds 2027 Annual Subtotals: $60,000 $54,000 $6,000
Bank

$246,636 Remaining Funds 2028 Annual Subtotals:
AIP $500,000 $396,636 $53,364 $50,000

Remaining Funds 2029 Annual Subtotals: $500,000 $396,636 $53,364 $50,000
5 Year CIP Totals: $3,663,334 $1,161,636 $687,000 $53,364 $1,550,000 $211,333

SPONSOR SIGNATURE: __________________________________ DATE: __________________________

C.E. Rusty Williams Airport (3F3), Desoto Parish, LA

Total = $396,636

Total = $150,636

$246,636

Total = $246,636

$396,636

$599,136 $565,500

Total = $1,164,636

$150,636

Total = $1,104,636

$561,636 $543,000

Funding Plan

Design Taxilanes & 10-Unit T-Hangar
Airfield Drainage Analysis
Runway/Taxiway Rehabilitation (Construction)
Airfield Lighting System & New Vault (Design)

Available

2029

2028

2027

2026

2025

Airfield Drainage Improvements (Construction)

Airfield Drainage Improvements (Design)

Airport Name (LOC ID), ST:

Fed 
FY

Funding 
Source ODO Project Component/Phase  Estimated 

Cost 

Construct Taxilanes & 10-Unit T-Hangar
Construct Taxilanes & 10-Unit T-Hangar
Airfield Lighting System & New Vault (Construction)
Airfield Lighting System & New Vault (Construction)

Page 57



 

 

 DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER:                                                                                         Date:  ____________________                  

 

R   E   S   O   L   U   T   I   O   N 
 

 

WHEREAS, Title 2 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950 provides that cities, towns, parishes, and other 

political subdivisions of this State may separately or jointly acquire, establish, construct, expand, own, lease, 

control, equip, improve, maintain, operate, regulate, and police airports and landing fields for the use of aircraft; 

and, 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Louisiana, Department of Transportation and Development, Division of Aviation (formerly 

the LA DOTD-OAPT) is charged by Title 2 with the responsibility for the development of aviation facilities within 

the State to foster air commerce and to safeguard the interests of those engaged in all phases of the aviation industry 

and of the general public; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Desoto Parish Police Jury hereinafter referred to as “Sponsor”, has completed an FAA and DOTD 

approved Master Plan, Action Plan, and/or Airport Layout Plan which outlines the specific future development of 

the C.E. Rusty Williams Airport; and, the Sponsor is desirous of implementing a portion of the approved Plan 

recommendations which provide for the critically needed improvements as stated below to substantially improve the 

safety and usability of the Airport, but does not have sufficient funds of its own required for completing the needed 

improvements; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the LA DOTD, Division of Aviation is authorized by Title 2 to expend funds for the construction or 

enlargement of airports for the safety and advancement of aeronautics; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

SECTION I 

 

That the Sponsor does hereby formally request that the LA DOTD, Division of Aviation provide funds required to 

complete the airport improvements at the C.E. Rusty Williams Airport specifically as described in the Capital 

Improvement Program Application for State Financial Assistance dated September 2024: 

 

SECTION II 

 

That the said LA DOTD, Division of Aviation be and is hereby assured that all necessary servitudes, rights-of-way, 

rights of ingress and egress and means thereof will be furnished by the Sponsor and the titles thereto will be valid 

and indefeasible, and that the Sponsor will assume ownership, financial reporting, and complete responsibility for 

the maintenance and upkeep of the airport after completion of said improvement. 

 

SECTION III 

 

That the Sponsor will save and hold the said LA DOTD, Division of Aviation, its officers, agents, and employees 

harmless from any liability or claim for damages arising out of the project, including death or injuries to third parties 

including, but not limited to, liability or claim for damages out of the negligence of said LA DOTD, Division of 

Aviation, its officers, agents, or employees, and expressly agrees to defend any suit of any nature brought against the 

LA DOTD, Division of Aviation as a result of this project. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 58



 

SECTION IV 

 

That the President of the Sponsor be and is hereby authorized and directed to evidence this agreement by affixing his 

signature at the place provided therefore on this resolution and on subsequent related documents/agreements as 

required by the rules and regulations of the Federal Aviation Administration and the State of Louisiana and the 

Clerk is hereby authorized to attest said execution. 

 

SECTION V 

 

That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption.   

 

The President and Police Jury for the Sponsor of the Parish of Desoto met in regular session on this date.  The 

aforesaid resolution was offered by ______________ and seconded by _______________.  The aforesaid resolution, 

having been submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows: 

 

 YEAS: _______ NAYS: ________ ABSENT: ________. 

 

WHEREUPON, the resolution was declared adopted on the _______ day of _______________, 2024.                          

                                                                                                                               

                                                                                                                      DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY                      
 

 

BY:_______________________________________ 

                                                                                                                                  (Signature) 

 

__________________________________________ 

                                                                                                                       (Typed or Printed Name) 

 

TITLE:____________________________________ 

 

 

ATTEST:__________________________________ 

                                                                                                                                  (Signature) 

 

__________________________________________ 

                                                                                                                                     (Title) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

IT IS HEREBY certified that the above is a true and correct copy of a resolution passed by the Sponsor of Desoto 

Parish, Louisiana in regular session convened on this, the _____ day of ____________, 2024. 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

                                                                                                                    (Signature of Secretary of Sponsor) 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

                                                                                                                                          (Title) 

Page 60



 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ALLOCATION OF ROYALTIES FOR 
 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND OTHER APPROVED PROJECTS, 

AND THE TRANSFER OF EXCESS ROYALTIES TO SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS   
 

 
WHEREAS, the DeSoto Parish Police Jury recognizes the importance of economic development in 
fostering growth, sustainability, and community welfare; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Desoto Parish Police Jury finds that a portion of gas royalties received by it should be used 
for economic development and can be effectively utilized to support projects that enhance economic 
opportunities and community development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Desoto Parish Police Jury determines that it is in its interest and the interest of its citizens 
to allocate up to $2 million in gas royalties each fiscal year for targeted economic development projects 
which it deems beneficial for the Parish; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Desoto Parish Police Jury may consider economic development projects during its fiscal 
year and elect to fund any economic development project or projects from a portion of the royalties up to 
$2 million in gas royalties annually;  
 
WHEREAS, the Desoto Parish Police Jury finds that it is in the interest of the Parish that all funds on hand 
from gas royalties in excess of $2 million be invested in short-term investments aimed at maximizing returns; 
and   
 
WHEREAS, the Desoto Parish Police Jury finds that it is in the interest of the Parish that all future gas 
royalties be transferred to short-term investments aimed at maximizing returns until such time the funds are 
needed for economic development projects or other projects approved by the Desoto Parish Police Jury;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury in legal session convened, that: 
 

1. Authorization of Funds: Up to $2 Million of royalties received shall be earmarked for economic 
development projects each fiscal year, with specific projects to be identified and approved by the 
DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

2. Transfer of Royalties: Any royalties shall be transferred to short-term investments until such time 
that they are needed to fund specific projects identified and approved by the Desoto Parish Police 
Jury.   

3. Implementation and Reporting: The Parish Treasurer is directed to implement this resolution, 
provide regular updates on the status of funded projects and report on the performance of 
transferred funds. 

4. Effective Date: This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.  
 

MOTION TO ADOPT the above Resolution was made by _____________________ seconded by 

______________________________. 

WHEREUPON the Resolution was declared duly adopted on this the 21st   day of October  2024.  

 

AYES:         NAYS:         ABSENT:         Abstain:  __      

 
              
RODRIGUEZ ROSS, PRESIDENT                                   JODI ZEIGLER, PARISH SECRETARY 
DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY                                    DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

 
CERTIFIED 

 
I, Jodi Zeigler, hereby certify in my capacity as the Parish Secretary of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury that 
the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution passed by the DeSoto Parish Police 
Jury at a Regular Meeting held on the _21st  day of   October 2024__ a quorum being present. 
 
 
                                                                                     

Jodi Zeigler, Parish Secretary 

Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 1 of 2024 

 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING ABANDONING AZALEA ROAD 

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was advertised and held on Monday October 21, 2024, 

in the Police Jury Meeting Room at which no adverse comments were voiced; 

 

WHEREAS, the Police Jury of Desoto Parish, Louisiana found that the Azalea Road 

beginning 700’ NW of its intersection with US HWY 171 for approximately 1100’ is 

not needed for a public purpose;  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Police Jury of DeSoto Parish, 

Louisiana, convened in legal and special session on Monday October 21, 2024, does 

hereby abandon Azalea Road. 

 

Motion to adopt the above and foregoing ordinance was made by _____________, 

seconded by ________________, Monday October 21, 2024 an Ordinance was 

declared duly adopted. 

 

YEAS:   NAYS:  ABSENT:      ABSTAIN:  

 

 

__               

RODRIGUEZ ROSS, PRESIDENT  JODI ZEIGLER, SECRETARY 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

 

 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

I, Jodi Zeigler, hereby certify in my capacity as the Secretary of the DeSoto Parish 

Police Jury that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Ordinance  

passed by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury at a regular meeting held on the 21st day of 

October, 2024, a quorum being  present. 

 

 

     

Jodi Zeigler, Secretary 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury 
 

 

Page 64



Page 65



 

VETERANS CELEBRATION COMMITTEE 

   2024 DATES TO REMEMBER   

MEETING DATES 
MARCH 20TH  11:00 AM ROUNDUP ROOM—FAIRGROUNDS 

APRIL 17TH    11:00 AM ROUNDUP ROOM—FAIRGROUNDS 

MAY 22ND  11:00 AM ROUNDUP ROOM—FAIRGROUNDS  

JUNE 12TH 11:00 AM ROUNDUP ROOM—FAIRGROUNDS 

AUGUST 21ST  11:00 AM ROUNDUP ROOM—FAIRGROUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 18TH  11:00 AM ROUNDUP ROOM—FAIRGROUNDS 

OCTOBER 23RD   TBA TBA 

 

VETERANSCELEBRATIONCOMMITTEE@GMAIL.COM  

DEADLINE FOR ADS, SPONSORSHIP FORMS, PARADE PARTICIPANT FORMS, 

AND NOMINATION FORMS 

FRIDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2024 
 

JOINT PROCLAMATION SIGNING 

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 1 AT 10:00 AM 

Government Plaza, 505 Travis Street, Shreveport 

 

VETERANS CELEBRATION WEEK 

NOVEMBER 4, 2024 THROUGH NOVEMBER 10, 2024 
Caddo Parish, City Of Shreveport, Bossier Parish, Bossier City, Desoto, Mansfield (Other 

Parishes are invited and welcomed!) 

 

OPERATION GREENLIGHT 

NOVEMBER 4, 2024 THROUGH NOVEMBER 10, 2024 

Light up your homes and businesses green to let Veterans know that they are appreciated and 

supported  

 

VETERANS HONOR CEREMONY 

SATURDAY, NOVEMBER 9, 2024 AT 5:00 PM 
Shreveport Municipal Auditorium, 705 Grand Avenue, Shreveport 

 

VETERANS PARADE 

SUNDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2024 AT 2:00 PM 
Louisiana State Fairgrounds, 3701 Hudson Avenue, Shreveport 

 

Page 66

mailto:VETERANSCELEBRATIONCOMMITTEE@GMAIL.COM


 

 

 

SPONSORS / ADVERTISERS FORM 
VETERANS CELEBRATION COMMITTEE 

P.O. Box 29436 Shreveport, LA 71149 

Contact Mr. Kenneth Epperson, Sr. 

(318) 773-2654 

E-Mail: Veteranscelebrationcommittee@gmail.com 

PLEASE PRINT INFORMATION 

Name of Group or Individual:    
 

Contact person:  

Address:     

Email:    
 

Phone: Cell 
 
 

SPONSORSHIPS ADVERTISERS 
 

  Red ($500.00)*   1 page ad ($150.00) 
 

  White ($250.00)*   ½ page ad ($100.00) 
 

  Blue ($100.00)*   1/4 page ad ($75.00) 
 

  Banner Sponsorship ($150.00)*   1/8 page ad ($50.00) 

 

 

 
 

❖ Red sponsor receives a full page ad with 50 LA State Fair tickets valued at $10.00 each. 

 

❖ White sponsor receives ½ page ad with 25 LA State Fair tickets valued at $10.00 each. 

 

❖ Blue sponsor receives ⅛ page ad with 10 LA State Fair tickets valued at $10.00 each. 

 

❖ Banner Sponsor receives 12 LA State Fair tickets valued at $10.00 each. Banners will be 

carried in the parade. 

 

 

MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO: VETERANS CELEBRATION COMMITTEE & MAIL 

CHECKS TO THE P.O. BOX AT THE TOP OF THIS FORM. 

 

 

DEADLINE TO SUBMIT APPLICATION: OCTOBER 4, 2024 

 Page 67

mailto:Veteranscelebrationcommittee@gmail.com


COL STEVEN dePYSSLER AWARD 

NOMINATION FORM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NAME/ORGANIZATION/GROUP TO BE CONSIDERED:    

 

ADDRESS PHONE:   

 

BRANCH OF SERVICE: HIGHEST RANK HELD:    

 

DATES OF SERVICE: DECORATIONS EARNED:    

 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION: 

This section is to be completed with information about the nominee’s service to the Veteran community and 

any other information to justify the award. Information should include membership in any Veteran Service 

Organizations and offices held, if any. Please also submit a copy of DD214, brief bio and picture of the 

nominee with this application. (All pictures will be returned once the program booklet has been completed.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOMINATED BY: PHONE NUMBER: 

 

VETERANS CELEBRATION COMMITTEE 

P.O. Box 29436 Shreveport, LA 71149 

 VETERANSCELEBRATIONCOMMITTEE@GMAIL.COM 

 

DEADLINE TO SUBMIT APPLICATION: OCTOBER 4, 2024 

 Page 68

mailto:Veteranscelebrationcommittee@gmail.com


 

 
 

 

 

VETERANS RECOGNITION PROGRAM 

NOMINATION FORM 
 

PLEASE PRINT ALL INFORMATION 
 

 

FULL NAME OF VETERAN:    

First Middle Initial Last 

ADDRESS PHONE:   
 

BRANCH OF SERVICE: HIGHEST RANK HELD:    
 

DATES OF SERVICE: DECORATIONS EARNED:    
 
 

 

JUSTIFICATION: 

This section is to be completed with information about the nominee’s service to the Veteran 

community and any other information to justify the award. Information should include 

membership in any Veteran Service Organizations and offices held, if any. Please also submit a 

copy of DD214, brief bio and picture of the nominee with this application. (All pictures will be 

returned once the program booklet has been completed.) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOMINATED BY: PHONE NUMBER: 
 

 

VETERANS CELEBRATION COMMITTEE 
P.O. Box 29436 Shreveport, LA 71149 

 VETERANSCELEBRATIONCOMMITTEE@GMAIL.COM 

 
DEADLINE TO SUBMIT APPLICATION: OCTOBER 4, 2024 

 

Page 69

mailto:Veteranscelebrationcommittee@gmail.com


 

 

PARADE PARTICIPANT FORM 
VETERANS CELEBRATION COMMITTEE 

P.O. Box 29436 Shreveport, LA 71149 

Contact Mr. Kenneth Epperson, Sr. 

(318) 773-2654 

E-Mail: Veteranscelebrationcommittee@gmail.com 

PLEASE PRINT INFORMATION 

Name of Group or Individual:    

 

Contact person:   
 

Address:    
 

Email:    
 

Phone: Cell   
 

Group Type: Marching Band JROTC Cheerleaders Pep Squad/Spirit 

  Social Group Church Veteran M/C Other 
 

  # of Persons in Unit   Unit will walk together. 
 

  Unit will be riding in (check which one)       truck           car other 

 
Please list 3 things/events/interest you would like mentioned about your group. 

1.   

2.   

3.   

Signage: You are responsible for your signage. Sign can have an individual or group name 

displayed on your float, vehicle, etc. Other patriotic signage, banners, slogans and text to honor 

our Military Veterans is allowed as well. The Veterans Celebration Committee is non-political. 

No political campaigns, banners slogans or references are allowed in the parade. 

Tosses Allowed: You can purchase Candy and Soft Tosses to throw from your float during the 

parade. 

Please read and sign the Hold Harmless Agreement on the back of this form. 

 
DEADLINE TO SUBMIT APPLICATION: OCTOBER 4, 2024 

 
 

Page 70

mailto:Veteranscelebrationcommittee@gmail.com


Hold Harmless Agreement 

 

The participating organization listed above does hereby Hold Harmless 

and Indemnify “The Veterans Celebration Committee”, its officers and 

members, of any unforeseen liabilities, losses, claims and/or damages 

during their involvement in the Veterans Parade at the Louisiana State 

Fairgrounds. The participating organization further certifies that the 

drivers of any of their vehicles are legally licensed drivers and all 

vehicles used in the parade have current liability insurance as required 

by State Law.** 

Signed this: day of 202_. 

Printed Name:      

Signature:   
 

Title:   
 

 

**Please provide a copy of driver’s license and insurance coverage. 

Page 71



2024 VETERANS PARADE
S U N D A Y ,  N O V E M B E R  1 0 ,  2 0 2 4  

2 : 0 0  P . M .

PARADE GRAND MARSHAL:
SAM ARCHIE MATTOX (105 YEARS OLD)
CORPORAL E-4, UNITED STATES ARMY 

WWII VETERAN

FREE PARKING AND ADMISSION FOR ALL ACTIVE MILITARY, VETERANS,
AND THEIR FAMILIES

PARADE ANNOUNCERS:
DAN JOVIC

 JACQUE JOVIC
CHANNEL 6 NEWS ANCHORS

“VETERANS, AMERICA’S FIRST HEROES. EVERYDAY SHOULD BE VETERANS DAY IN AMERICA.”

LOUISIANA STATE FAIRGROUNDS
3701 HUDSON AVENUE, SHREVEPORT, LA 71109

FOR MORE INFO, PLEASE CONTACT THE VETERANS CELEBRATION COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN, KEN
EPPERSON, SR. (318) 773-2654 OR VETERANSCELEBRATIONCOMMITTEE@GMAIL.COM

Page 72



"VETERANS, AMERICA'S FIRST HEROES. EVERYDAY
SHOULD BE VETERANS DAY IN AMERICA."

2024 VETERANS HONOR

CEREMONY & PARADE

HONOR
CEREMONY

SATURDAY,
NOVEMBER 9

5:00 PM
SHREVEPORT
MUNICIPAL

AUDITORIUM
705 GRAND 

AVENUE
SHREVEPORT

LOUISIANA STATE
FAIRGROUNDS
3701 HUDSON

AVENUE
SHREVEPORT

SUNDAY,
NOVEMBER 10

2:00 PM

FREE AND OPEN TO THE
PUBLIC

FREE PARKING &
ADMISSION TO ALL

MILITARY, VETERANS, AND
THEIR FAMILIES

PARADE

VETERANS CELEBRATION COMMITTEE 
(EST. 2011)

Page 73



Stacey Alexander Henderson, MD 

Emergency Medicine 

301 Easton Private Drive 

Stonewall, LA 71078 

 

 

 

September 12, 2024 

 

 

Dear Members of the Jury:  

 

I am writing to inform you of my resignation from my position on the Desoto Parish EMS Board 

of Commissioners effective September 30,2024. As you already know, I am serving as the 

Coroner of the parish as well as working as a full-time Emergency Medicine physician. I feel that 

it is in the best interest of the parish to have a member with more time to invest in the board 

which is why I am recommending Mr. Mark Connella.  

 

Mr. Connella is a resident of Desoto Parish. He has extensive experience in the field of 

emergency medical services, retiring from Shreveport Fire Department after an over 30 year 

career. He also served as EMS Supervisor for Medical Operations which gave him valuable 

experience that I believe will make him an asset to the Desoto EMS Board.  

 

I have very much enjoyed serving on the board for the past several years and I am thankful for 

the opportunity to serve the parish.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

Stacey Alexander Henderson, MD  

 

Page 74



AGREEMENT FOR GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS & POLICY CONSULTING SERVICES: 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

AND 

THE DELTA RESOURCE GROUP 

 

This AGREEMENT for consulting services (hereinafter referred to as “AGREEMENT”) 

is made and effective as January 1, 2024 (hereinafter the “Effective Date”), by and between the 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury (hereinafter referred to as “CLIENT”) and The Delta Resource Group, 

a Louisiana limited liability company whose mailing address is 415 Texas Street, Suite 401, 

Shreveport, Louisiana 71101 (hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT”). CLIENT and 

CONSULTANT are occasionally hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Parties” and each 

individually as a “Party.” 

1. PARTIES 

This AGREEMENT for the providing of consulting services (hereinafter collectively called 

"services") is now entered into by and between CLIENT and CONSULTANT. 

2. COMPENSATION AND SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED 

CLIENT agrees to pay CONSULTANT a fee of FIVE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED 

DOLLARS per month due on the fifth (5st) of each month for which the CONSULTANT shall 

provide the services as articulated in the attached proposal submitted to CLIENT on March 14, 

2022. 

The monthly rate shall be assessed and adjusted annually consistent with and in accordance 

to the Consumer Price Index published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor and Statistics.  

3. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

CLIENT and CONSULTANT agree that CONSULTANT will act as an independent 

contractor in the performance of services under this AGREEMENT. The CONSULTANT is not 

an employee, servant, or agent of the CLIENT. CONSULTANT shall be responsible for the 

payment of all income and other taxes arising out of the compensation under this 

AGREEMENT.  

4. PROPERTY RIGHTS 

CLIENT and CONSULTANT agree that any and all content, strategies, and data created 

or collected by the CONSULTANT in carrying out the terms of this AGREEMENT are property 

of the CLIENT and shall be made available to the CLIENT by the CONSULTANT as requested 

and upon termination of the AGREEMENT.  

5. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

Page 75



a. This AGREEMENT shall commence on the Effective Date and continue for a 

period of one year, at which point it shall automatically renew for up to five 

successive years, for which the rates will be adjusted in accordance to Section 2. 

b. Either Party may immediately terminate this AGREEMENT if the other Party 

commits a material breach of contract.  

c. Thirty days prior to the annual renewal date, either Party may terminate this 

AGREEMENT without cause.  All fees, expenses, or obligations incurred up to 

that date shall be paid or performed in accordance with the terms of this 

AGREEMENT by the terminating Party. 

 

6. EXECUTION AND SIGNATURE OF AGREEMENT 

This AGREEMENT is signed and executed by the following persons and parties on the 

dates shown below, with all signatures and persons signing expressly, personally and 

individually representing that they have express authority, by appropriate corporate resolution or 

otherwise, to sign this AGREEMENT on behalf of the party. 

7. NOTICES 

All notices or communications required or permitted under this AGREEMENT shall be 

sent in writing or by email to the following persons: 

a. If to CLIENT, to Michael Norton, email: mnorton@desotoppj.com  

b. If to CONSULTANT, Chance McNeely, email: chance@deltarg.com 

c. Either Party may by written notice give to the other Party another address 

for serving notices or communications hereunder. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this AGREEMENT to be 

executed by their authorized representatives. 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury     The Delta Resource Group, LLC 

 

_______________________________   ___________________________ 

By:  Michael Norton     By:   D. Chance McNeely 

Title:  Parish Administrator     Title: Owner 

Date:        Date: 

Page 76



RIGHT OF WAY GRANT

THE STATE OF
LOUISIANA

§
§ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

PARISH OF DESOTO §

This perpetual Right of Way Grant is entered into by and between Desoto Parish Police Jury (the
“Grantor”), and BMP Mundy, LLC whose address is 9901 Valley Ranch Parkway East, Suite 2060, Irving,
TX  75063, and its successors and assigns (the “Grantee”). Effective as of this ___ day of ________, 2024, (the
“Effective Date”). Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant to Grantee the
right of way to lay, construct, maintain, operate, replace, protect, repair, change the size of, abandon in
place and remove pipelines for the transportation of gas, water, oil, condensate, or any other material or
substance which can be transported by pipeline, with all incidental equipment for the operation of the
pipeline, including, but not limited to, valves, meters, launchers and receivers, under a strip of land 30 feet
wide (the “Servitude Area”)  through, over, under, and across a portion of that certain real property situated
in Desoto Parish and State of Louisiana, as more particularly set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto (the
“Property”), which Servitude Area is more particularly described and depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto
and made a part hereof, together with the following rights, subject to Grantor’s use of the Servitude Area
as permitted herein: (i) the right to make temporary use of the surface of the Servitude Area for purposes
related to the repair, maintenance, replacement, inspection and removal of such pipeline, and (ii) the right
of ingress and egress over and across existing roadways on the Property, for all purposes incident to said
grant.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said right of way unto Grantee, its successors and assigns, for so long
as said right of way is used for the purposes stated above and until said right of way is released by recordable
instrument.

1. It is distinctly understood and agreed that this Right of Way Grant does not constitute a
conveyance of any part of the land above described nor of the minerals therein and thereunder, but grants
only the right of way as above provided.

2. Grantor retains for themselves and their heirs and assigns the right to use the surface of the
Servitude Area, including, but not limited to, the right to farm, graze, continue use of improvements on the
surface of the Servitude Area, construct improvements, including but not limited to collector lines and other
servitudes, and continue use of roadways and other means of ingress and egress on the surface of the
Servitude Area,  and otherwise use and enjoy the Servitude Area., except to the extent that such use may
materially interfere with the safety of the pipeline operations.

3. The Servitude Area shall not exceed fifty (50) feet in width during construction. Thereafter,
the Servitude Area shall not exceed thirty (30) feet in width.

4. Grantee agrees to bury all pipelines to provide for a minimum cover of thirty-six (36) inches
ground cover, except if solid rock is encountered, the minimum cover shall be eighteen (18) inches through
that area, excepting all appurtenances that by their nature are above ground.Page 77



5. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, Grantee may terminate this Right
of Way Grant at any time upon notice to Grantor.

6. Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable laws and regulations that may pertain to the
pipeline, the Servitude Area, and the rights subject to this right of way. Grantee shall not store hazardous
materials or materials that constitute a public health hazard.

7. In the event of any material breach of this right of way, which has not been cured following
thirty (30) days from receipt of written notice of default, the non-defaulting party may pursue any and all
remedies available at law or in equity.

8. Grantee acknowledges and assumes any and all foreseeable risks associated with and
related to the activities described in this right of way, including but not limited to: personal injury, property
damage or loss, and loss of life.

9. Grantor hereby expressly agrees that in the event the route of the Facilities to be constructed
hereunder should cross any roads, railroads, creeks, or other waterways located on the above-described land
or other places requiring extra work space, or if the rights granted hereunder require extra work space, then
Grantee shall have the right and temporary access to additional working space which may be necessary, useful
or convenient therefore, and Grantee agrees to pay Grantor any direct damages which Grantor suffers by
reason of Grantee’s use of said additional work space.

10. Without prior written consent of the Grantee, Grantor shall not construct or permit
construction within the boundaries of the Agreement, and Grantee shall have the right to prevent the
construction within the boundaries of the Agreement and the right to remove therefrom, any and all types and
sizes of houses, barns, buildings, structures, permanent impoundments of water, and natural or man-made
obstructions, including but not limited to trees, brush, roots, or other growth. Grantor shall not, nor permit
third parties to change the grade of the land or remove the cover over the Facilities or excavate on or near the
Agreement without prior written consent of Grantee.

11. Absent Grantor’s negligence, willful misconduct, or strict liability, Grantee agrees that
Grantor, its members, managers, officers, employees and agents shall not be liable for any damage to
Grantee’s improvements or personal property located on the Property.

12. Grantee shall obtain and maintain, during the term of this right of way, insurance payable in
such amounts and against such risks as shall adequately cover Grantor’s liability assumed by Grantee under
this right of way.

1 3 . Grantee shall indemnify, defend and hold the Grantor, and Grantor’s lessees and
mortgagees, if any, harmless from and against all claims, demands, causes of action, suits, and liability of
every kind, type, and character arising out of or associated with the use of this right of way and of the rights
granted herein, which are asserted by any person or entity, for personal injury, death or loss of or damage to
property made upon the behalf of, or for by any person or persons, for the negligence, gross negligence,
willful misconduct, or strict liability on the part of the Grantee, or Grantee’s agents, and from all loss or
damages by reason of such claims or causes of action.

1 4 . Grantee further agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold Grantor, and Grantor’s lessees and
mortgagees, if any, harmless from all loss, damage, expense, fees, claims, costs, fines, penalties, and
liabilities including, but not limited to clean up costs, remedial and monitoring costs, damages to the
environment, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of litigation, arising out of the Grantee’s installation, use,
storage, disposal or release of hazardous substances on the Servitude Area or the Property or violation of any
hazardous substance law.

Page 78



1 5 . It is understood and agreed that in the event Grantee ceases use of and abandons the right of
way herein granted for a period of twenty-four (24) consecutive months provided, that such
abandonment or nonuse is not the direct result of war, Acts of God, and/or rules or regulations
promulgated by any governmental body (federal, state or local) having jurisdiction thereof. or
if the Landfill Gas Agreement by and between Grantor and Grantee, dated June 12, 2023,
expires or is terminated for any reason, the easement granted herein will revert to Grantor;

16. All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be determined to have
been effectively given upon actual receipt or upon refusal of delivery or, if earlier and whether
or not actually received, (i) one (1) business day after deposit with a recognized overnight
delivery service (such as Federal Express or UPS) for next business day delivery, properly
addressed to the intended recipient, with delivery charges prepaid by, or billed to, the sender, or
(ii) three (3) business days after deposit with the United States mail, registered or certified mail,
return receipt requested, postage prepaid, properly addressed to the intended recipient. The
parties shall also send copy of all notices required or permitted hereunder to the recipient’s email
address, but transmission solely to such email address shall not constitute notice hereunder. The
initial notice addresses and email addresses of the parties are as follows:

Grantor:
 Desoto Parish Police Jury
101 Franklin Street
Mansfield, LA 71052

Grantee:
BMP Mundy, LLC
9901 Valley Ranch Pkwy East, Suite 2060
Irving, TX 75063-4870

Either party may change its address for receipt of notices from time to time by delivering at least ten (10) days
prior written notice of such change to the other party in the manner prescribed above.

17.   This Right of Way Grant may be executed in counterparts and as so executed shall constitute
one Agreement binding on all parties hereto, notwithstanding that all the parties have not signed the original
or the same counterpart. The terms and provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon
Grantor and Grantee and their respective heirs, successors, and assigns.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signature pages to follow]

Page 79



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee herein have duly executed this Right of Way Grant to be
effective as of the Effective Date.

WITNESSES: GRANTOR:

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY

(Printed name of Witness 1)

By:
Name:
Date:

(Printed name of Witness 2)

STATE OF LOUISIANA

PARISH OF DESOTO

On this ___ day of ________ in the year 2024 before me, _________________ personally appeared
__________________, known to me to be the person who executed the within Right of Way Grant and who
executed the foregoing instrument, acknowledged to me that he or she executed the same for the purposes
therein stated as his or her free act and deed.

Notary Public
Print Name:
Notary ID# or Bar Roll #:
My Commission Expires:

Page 80



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee herein have duly executed this Right of Way Grant to be
effective as of the Effective Date.

WITNESSES: GRANTEE:

BMP MUNDY, LLC

(Printed name of Witness 1)

By:
Name:
Date:

(Printed name of Witness 2)

STATE OF TEXAS_______  )
)

COUNTY OF ____________ )

On this ___ day of ________ in the year 2024 before me, _________________ personally appeared
__________________, the _____________ of _____________________ known to me to be the person who
executed the within Right of Way Grant on behalf of said limited liability company and acknowledged to me
that he or she executed the same for the purposes therein stated as his or her free act and deed.

Notary Public
Print Name:
Notary ID# or Bar Roll #:
My Commission Expires:

Page 81



Page 82



EXHIBIT “B”

CENTERLINE DESCRIPTION
30’ WIDE PIPELINE EASEMENT

SECTIONS 3 & 4, T 12 N – R 12 W
DESOTO PARISH, LOUISIANA

Being the centerline description of a thirty (30’) foot wide pipeline easement situated in Sections 3 & 4, T 12 N – R 12 W,
DeSoto Parish, Louisiana, being over and across the NE/4 of said Section 4 as described and conveyed to the DeSoto Parish
Police Jury, recorded in File No. 515342 and File No. 482527, and the W/2 of the NW/4 of said Section 3 as described and
conveyed to the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, recorded in File No. 47092, said centerline being more particularly described as
follows, (Bearing Basis: LSPCS-North Zone-1701, NAD83, GRID):

BEGINNING at a point in the east line of a proposed surface site located in the residue of the NE/4 of said Section 4, said
point of beginning having coordinates of N:570320.24, E:2941498.47;

THENCE S 8910’10” E, 565.13 feet crossing the NE/4 of said Section 4 to an angle point in the east line of said Section 4
and west line of said Section 3;

THENCE S 8913’28” E, 1309.20 feet to the POINT OF TERMINATION of the herein described centerline being in the east
line of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury tract in the W/2 of the NW/4 of Section 3, and the west line of the E/2 of the NW/4
of Section 3 as described and conveyed to KCI Land Company, recorded in File No. 497458, said point of termination
having coordinates of N:570294.32, E:2943372.61, from which a 1/2" iron rod found for the common north corner of both
tracts bears N 0048’32” E, 15.00 feet.

The sidelines of the herein described 30’ wide pipeline easement being 15’ each side of said centerline and shall be
shortened or lengthened to terminate at intersecting angle points or boundary lines.

The total length of the herein described centerline is 1874.33 feet or 113.60 rods; The 30 foot wide Permanent Easement
contains a calculated area of 1.291 acres; There is a 20 foot wide Area of Temporary Workspace along the south edge of
said Permanent Easement which contains a calculated area of 0.861 acre.

Page 83



            
 

 
 
 
 
Scope: DeSoto Parish Police Jury     Job Title: Office Coordinator 
 
Category: Maintenance      Pay Range: $16.92 - $25.38 
 
Description:  The Office Coordinator will perform administrative support and customer service tasks to 
ensure efficient operation of the office.   
 
Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Greets customers and visitors to the office and ensure they are connected with the right office personnel. 

 Prepares, scans, and indexes documents into electronic system. 

 Manages incoming and outgoing correspondence, including emails, faxes, mail and packages. 

 Answers office phone and transfers callers as appropriate. 

 Time stamp documents when needed. 

 Prepares monthly reports for Maintenance Superintendent. 

 Maintains Maintenance Superintendent monthly calendar. 

 Creates purchase orders for the maintenance staff. 

 Monitor janitorial supplies and place orders when needed. 

 Keep all office supplies stocked and office equipment in working order. 

 Manages the  IWorq system and processes the work orders.   

 Contributes to team effort by cross training with Janitorial Staff to help when needed. 

 Coordinates with contractors for repairs to be done at various job sites. 

 Coordinates and escorts vendors to various job sites. 

 Schedules meeting with vendors for Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent. 

 Provide strong administrative support, empowering team members to perform their jobs productively and 

efficiently. 

 Coordinates with subcontractors to do annual and semi-annual preventative maintenance on HVAC 

systems (generators, fire extinguishers, etc.). 

 Assists Maintenance Superintendent in preparing yearly budget. 

Qualifications 
 A High School Diploma, or GED equivalent is required.  
 Prior experience in an administrative role, a minimum of three (3) years of experience. 
 Great customer service and interpersonal skills. 
 Proficiency in Microsoft Office 
 Excellent verbal and written communication skills. 
 Problem-solving and basic troubleshooting skills 
 Ability to manage time efficiently under pressure. 

 
Physical Demands 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully perform 
the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to 
perform the essential functions. While performing the duties of this job, the employee will experience physical requirements 
similar to those associated with a business office environment, travel and outdoor functions. 

Page 84



RULE 2:    All resolutions, ordinances and agenda items shall be submitted to the Secretary 

by 12:00 p.m. on the Monday preceding Committee Meetings and the 

Wednesday preceding the Regular Meetings of the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

The Secretary will send out the packets for the Committee Meetings no later 

than the Wednesday proceeding the Committee Meeting and no later than 

Thursday preceding the Regular Meetings.  The Secretary shall make copies or 

a synopsis of all such resolutions, ordinances and agenda items and make them 

available to all members prior to the commencement of such meeting. All 

resolutions, ordinances and agenda items presented to the DeSoto Parish Police 

Jury shall be reviewed and approved as to legal form and content by the DeSoto 

Parish Police Jury’s legal counsel. All resolutions, ordinances and agenda items 

presented to the Secretary in contravention of the time limitations imposed 

herein shall not be considered by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury, unless the 

agenda of a Committee Meeting or Regular Meeting is enlarged in accordance 

with the applicable provisions of Louisiana law. The President shall review 

Committee Meeting and Regular Meeting agendas prior to transmittal to 

members of the Police Jurors. In the event an item is placed on an agenda which, 

by its very nature is considered confidential, including potential economic 

development projects, personnel matters, criminal investigations, litigation and 

other matters subject to the attorney-client privilege, the President may remove 

the item from the agenda, subject to consultation with the respective Committee 

Chairman. 

 

Page 85



!(

!(

!(

!(

DILLARD PVT DR

STILES RD

291
 

316
 

Page 86



 

9/24/2024 12:53 PM 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 
 
PARISH OF DESOTO 

 
 

COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT 
 
 

  THIS COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT made and entered into this ___________day 
of ___________________, 2024 by and between: 
 

THE DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY, a political subdivision of the State of 
Louisiana, whose mailing address is 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052, 
represented herein by its duly authorized President, Rodriguez Ross, (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Police Jury"); and 
 

THE CITY OF MANSFIELD, (TIN: XX-XXX0881), a political subdivision of the 
State of Louisiana, its permanent mailing address being P.O. Box 773, 
Mansfield, Louisiana, 71052 represented herein by its duly authorized Mayor, 
Thomas Jones, (hereinafter referred to as "City”). 
 

  WHEREAS, the City, property owners, and business owners on Adams Street near Polk 
Street (US Hwy 84) rely upon the roadway system for safe, efficient transportation to/from their 
property; and 

   WHEREAS, access to major government buildings makes Adams Street a significant traffic 
generator; and 

  WHEREAS, the paving on Adams Street is nearing the end of its useful life; and 

  WHEREAS, the City does not have the necessary design and construction expertise to repair 
and improve the Adams Street paving; and 

  WHEREAS, the Police Jury does have the necessary design and construction expertise to 
repair and improve the Adams Street paving; and 

  WHEREAS, Louisiana Revised Statutes authorize the Police Jury and City to build and repair 
roads, bridges, utilities, and other infrastructure systems when, in the opinion of the Police Jury and 
City, such work will further the interests of the Parish and the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Police Jury and the City desire to enter into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement 
(the “Agreement”) for the purpose of facilitating the improvements described herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of this Agreement has been duly and validly authorized 

by the parties hereto; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 provides that the state and its political 
subdivisions or political corporations may engage in cooperative endeavors with each other, with the 
United States or its agencies, or with any public or private association, corporation, or individual. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Police Jury and the City each agree to perform their respective 
obligations under this Agreement in accordance with the conditions, covenants and procedures set forth 
herein as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I 

REPRESENTATIONS OF THE POLICE JURY AND CITY 
 
SECTION 1.01  Authority.  The Police Jury and City have all requisite power pursuant to the 
Louisiana Constitution of 1974 and Louisiana Revised Statutes to enter into this Agreement and perform 
their respective obligations hereunder, and there are no contracts or obligations in conflict therewith. 
 
SECTION 1.02  No Indebtedness.  The essence of the undertakings of the Police Jury and City are 
to work cooperatively together and to the best of their ability perform the work described herein and not 
to create any indebtedness on the part of either party but only to use their resources to complete the 
improvements in a timely manner.  
 

Page 87



 

9/24/2024 12:53 PM 

SECTION 1.03  Term and Effective Date.  The Term of this Agreement shall commence and 
become effective upon the execution hereof and terminate after the completion of each parties’ respective 
obligations. 
 

 
 

ARTICLE II 
COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR OBLIGATIONS 

 
SECTION 2.01  Relating to the Louisiana Constitution. In entering into this Agreement, it is not the 
intent of the Police Jury and City to enter into a gratuitous transfer of public funds and/or resources 
because both parties expect one another to facilitate the installation of the needed facilities to benefit 
businesses, citizens and visitors of DeSoto Parish. Accordingly, each party will receive something of 
value in return for the performance of their obligations hereunder, which are: 

 
(a) In the case of the Police Jury, improving the roadway system for safe, efficient access to 

homes, properties, and businesses and having the City own and maintain said improvements benefits 
DeSoto Parish citizens, businesses, and visitors. 

 
(b) In the case of the City, improving the roadway system for safe, efficient access to homes, 

properties, and businesses and having the Police Jury design and construct said improvements reduces 
cost to and improves the safety of the City’s citizens, businesses, and visitors. 
 

(c) In the case of both the Police Jury and the City, a partnership to improve the efficiency of 
delivering the improvements described in the reciprocal obligations herein. 
 

 
ARTICLE III 

POLICE JURY OBLIGATIONS 
 

SECTION 3.01  Police Jury Obligations. 
 

(a) The Police Jury, and/or its contractor, will provide all labor, material, and equipment to 
design and construct the improvements. 
 

(b) The improvements will be performed on Adams Street from Polk Street (US Hwy 84) to 
Texas Street, as depicted on Exhibit “A”, herein attached. 

 
(c) The improvements include adding a 2” thick asphalt overlay to existing street paving 

measuring approximately 46’ x 204’ and restriping. 
 
(d) The improvements do not include drainage and signage. 
 
(e) The Police Jury will coordinate with the City on such tasks as scope of work and 

schedules of performance. 
 
(f) The Police Jury will not unreasonably withhold approvals of minor requests by the City. 
 
(g) The Police Jury will provide the necessary resources to timely complete the 

improvements once the work has begun. 
 
(h) Costs to the Police Jury will not exceed $27,660.00. 

 
 

 
ARTICLE IV 

CITY OBLIGATIONS 
 

SECTION 4.01   City Obligations. 
 

(a) The City, and/or its contractor, will provide all labor, material, and equipment to perform 
its work. 

 
(b) The work will be performed on Adams Street from Polk Street (US Hwy 84) to Texas 

Street, as depicted on Exhibit “A”, herein attached. 
 
(c) The work includes traffic control, advance notice (residents, businesses, first responders, 

utilities, school board, etc.) of the impending work, obtaining permits, and timely 
responses to Police Jury’s requests for assistance and/or information. 

 

Page 88



 

9/24/2024 12:53 PM 

(d) The work does not include the work specifically assigned to or excluded from the Police 
Jury. 

 
(e) The City will coordinate with the Police Jury on such tasks as scope of work and 

schedules of performance for the improvements.  
 
(f) The City will not unreasonably withhold approvals of minor requests by the Police Jury. 
 
(g) The City will provide the necessary resources to timely complete its work once said work 

has begun. 
 
(h)  The City will accept the improvements upon their completion. 

 
ARTICLE V 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

SECTION 6.01  Liberal Construction. This Agreement shall be construed liberally to secure the 
beneficial intents and purposes hereof and in particular shall be construed liberally as necessary to 
protect and further the interests of the parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 6.02  Notices.  All reports, statements or notices required or advisable to be given 
hereunder shall be deemed to be given if sent to the parties hereto at the following addresses: 
 
 
POLICE JURY 
 
DeSoto Parish Police Jury 
c/o Michael Rister, P.E., Parish Engineer 
101 Franklin Street, 
Mansfield, Louisiana 71052 
318-872-0738 
 
 
CITY 
 
City of Mansfield 
Tarus Chatman, Public Works Director 
P. O. Box 773 
Mansfield, Louisiana 71052 
318-872-0406 
 
 
Any notice required or permitted to be given under or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing 
and shall be either hand-delivered; by United States Certified Mail, Return Receipt requested; by private 
or commercial carrier or express mail, such as Federal Express; by facsimile or electronic transmission 
confirmed by mailed written confirmation; or personally delivered to an officer of the receiving party. All 
such communications shall be mailed, sent or delivered to the address or number set forth above, or as 
to each party at such other addresses or numbers as shall be designated by such party in a written notice 
to the other party. 
 
SECTION 5.03  Severability.  To the fullest extent possible, each provision of this Agreement shall 
be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of 
this Agreement shall be prohibited or invalid under such law, such provision shall be ineffective to the 
extent of such prohibition or invalidity without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.04  No Personal Liability. No covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement shall 
be deemed to be the covenant or agreement of any official, trustee, officer, agent or employee of the 
Police Jury, in his or her individual capacity, and neither the officers thereof nor any official executing this 
Agreement shall be liable personally with respect hereto or be subject to any personal liability or 
accountability by reason of the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.05  Captions.   The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only 
and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or extent of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.06  Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each 
which shall be an original and all of which when taken together shall be deemed one and the same 
Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.07  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be constructed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Louisiana.  

Page 89



 

9/24/2024 12:53 PM 

 
SECTION 5.08  Amendment and/or Modification.  Neither this Agreement nor any term, provision 
or exhibit hereof may be changed, waived, discharged, amended or modified orally, or in any manner 
other than by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.09  Rescission or Amendment.   In no event shall any rescission or amendment to this 
Agreement be effective without the prior written consent of the affected parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.10  Third Party Beneficiary.   It is the explicit intention of the parties hereto that no 
person or entity other than the parties hereto, except governmental authorities to the extent required by 
law, is or shall be entitled to bring any action to enforce any provision of this Agreement against either 
parties hereto, and that the covenants, undertakings and agreements set forth in this Agreement shall be 
solely for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable only, by the parties hereto or their respective successors 
and assigns as permitted hereunder. 
 
SECTION 5.11  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, representatives and permitted 
assigns. 
 
SECTION 5.12  Assignment.  The parties may not assign their rights, duties or obligations under 
this Agreement to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of the other party. 
 
SECTION 5.13  Entire Agreement and Amendment.  This Agreement contains the entire 
agreement of the parties with respect to the matters contained herein and supersedes all previous 
agreements or understandings regarding the same, whether written or oral. This Agreement may be 
modified, changed, or altered only by an Agreement in writing signed by both parties. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement as of the date and year first written above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:                    DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

 
 
 

  BY:        
         RODRIGUEZ ROSS, PRESIDENT 

 
  
 
 
WITNESSES:             CITY OF MANSFIELD 
                                                                                      
 
 
  BY:        
                  THOMAS JONES, MAYOR 
 
       
 
 

  

Page 90



 

9/24/2024 12:53 PM 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

ADAMS STREET OVERLAY PROJECT 
ESTIMATED COST PER ROAD DEPT. 

Asphalt Cost     $13,100.00 
Contract Labor     2,280.00 
Contract Trucks   2,280.00 
Striping               10,000.00 
Total                   $27,660.00 

Page 91


	Top
	A.	Kerri Hubier - 20 years
	1.	Thomas Jones - City of Mansfield Mayor
	2.	Admin Report
	3.	Lobbyist
	4.	Financials
	September 2024-1

	5.	Minutes
	10-7 Administrative Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	10-7 Airport and Animal Control Committee Minutes Document
	10-1 Special Meeting Minutes Document
	10-7 Policy and Procedures Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	10-7 Budget and Finance Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	10-7 Special Meeting Minutes Document
	10-15 Budget and Finance Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	10-7 Road Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	10-7 Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	9-16 Regular Meeting Minutes Document
	10-7 Buildings and Properties & Parks and Recreational Committee Minutes Document

	6.	Lease 22104
	Resolution - Lease 22104

	7.	Lease 20636
	Final Resolution State Agency Lease 20636 (002)

	8.	Airport CIP
	3F3 CIP 2025-2029
	Resolution for Requesting CIP Application Projects

	9.	Short Term Resolution
	Resolution -Royalties revised 10.7.24-1

	10.	CEA/Resolution Detention Facility
	Scan_0001

	11.	Ordinance 1 of 2024
	ORDINANCE NUMBER 1 of 2024 Road Closing
	Azalea Lane Proposed Abandonment of Roadway

	12.	Veterans Day Parade
	2024 VCC Packet-9
	2024 VCC Parade Flyer (1)-1
	2024 Veterans Celebration Poster (1)-1

	13.	Ambulance Board
	Stacey Alexander Henderson

	14.	The Delta Resource Group
	Draft DPPJ Contract

	15.	ROW Agreement
	DPPJ_ Servitude Form_Final_Compiled-1

	16.	Letter of support
	17.	Tipping Fees
	18.	Compactor Site Floaters
	19.	Office Coordinator
	Office Coordinator

	20.	Bylaws
	RULE 2

	21.	Dillard Pvt Dr
	DILLARD PVT DR - PROPOSED

	22.	CEA Adams Street
	2024 Adams Street Overlay with Mansfield with Materials Cost OPCC Draft 2

	23.	Tree Cutting Services
	Bottom

